Note: [31 Jul 2010] – The following is the ASC Rules (General) as repealed and replaced. This version of the ASC Rules (General) is no longer current.

ALBERTA SECURITIES COMMISSION RULES (GENERAL)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART 1 INTERPRETATION

| Definition | 1 |
|---|--|
| Disclosure of securities beneficially owned Deemed to be a parent company | 2 3 |
| PART 2 SUMMONS | |
| Summons to a witness Summons for an examination | 4 5 |
| PART 3 REGISTRATION | |
| Compensation fund or contingency trust fund Registrant audit costs | 6 7 |
| PART 4 TRADING IN SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE CONTRACTS GEN | NERALLY |
| Trading in securities Confirmation under section 90(1) of the Act Confirmation of a trade in an option contract Confirmation re offsetting trade Outstanding exchange contract Minimum margin required Omnibus accounts Compliance with section 97(1)(c) of the Act Risk disclosure statement under section 98 of the Act | 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 |
| PART 5 INSIDER TRADING AND SELF-DEALING | |
| Report under section 183 of the Act Report under section 191 of the Act | 17 18 |
| PART 6 ENFORCEMENT | |
| Warrant Costs re investigation and hearing Payment to Commission | 19 20 21 |

PART 7 CIVIL LIABILITY FOR SECONDARY MARKET DISCLOSURE

| Meaning of equity security | 22 |
|--|------------------|
| Meaning of market capitalization | 23 |
| Meaning of principal market | 24 |
| Meaning of trading price | 25 |
| Application of Part 17.01 of the Act | 26 |
| PART 8 GENERAL PROVISIONS | |
| GENERAL FROVISIONS | |
| Filing of material filed in other jurisdictions – investment funds | 27 |
| Filing of material generally | 28 |
| Effective date and repeal | 29 |
| SCHEDULE | |
| FORMS | |
| Summons to a Witness pursuant to Section 28, 29 or 42 of the Act Affidavit of Service | Form 1 Form 2 |
| Summons for Examination before a Person Designated under Section 82 of the Securities | Form 3 |
| Act | |
| Report by a Registered Owner of Securities Beneficially Owned by an Insider under | Form 4 |
| Section 183 of the Securities Act | |
| Report by Management Company under Section 191 of the Securities Act | Form 5 |
| Endorsement of Warrant under Section 196(1) of the Securities Act | Form 6 |

PART 1 INTERPRETATION

Definition

1 In these Rules, "Act" means the Securities Act.

Disclosure of securities beneficially owned

- 2 (1) If Alberta securities laws require the disclosure of the number or percentage of securities beneficially owned by a person and, by virtue of section 5 of the Act, one or more companies will also have to be shown as beneficially owning the securities, a statement disclosing
 - (a) all securities beneficially owned or deemed to be beneficially owned by the person,
 - (b) the name of the controlled company or the company affiliated with the controlled company through which the securities are indirectly owned, and
 - (c) the number or percentage of the securities so owned by the company,

is deemed to be sufficient disclosure without disclosing the name of any other company that is deemed to beneficially own the same securities.

- (2) If Alberta securities laws require the disclosure of the number or percentage of securities beneficially owned by a company and, by virtue of section 6 of the Act, one or more other companies will also have to be shown as beneficially owning the securities, a statement
 - (a) disclosing all securities beneficially owned or deemed to be beneficially owned by the parent company, and
 - (b) indicating whether the ownership is direct or indirect and, if indirect, indicating
 - (i) the name of the subsidiary through which the securities are indirectly owned, and
 - (ii) the number or percentage of the securities so owned.

is deemed to be sufficient disclosure without disclosing the name of any other company that is deemed to beneficially own the same securities.

(3) Despite subsections (1) and (2), an insider that is a company required to report under National Instrument 55-104 *Insider Reporting Requirements and Exemptions* must report in accordance with that instrument.

Deemed to be a parent company

A company is deemed to be another company's parent company if that other company is its subsidiary.

PART 2 SUMMONS

subsection (1) must contribute an amount of money to the fund as

| | | | SUMMONS | | | |
|---|-----|------------|---|--|--|--|
| Summons to a witness | 4 | | | ollowing apply to the issuance of a summons under any of ns 28, 29 or 42 of the Act: | | |
| | | | (a) | every summons issued to a witness shall be completed in accordance with Form 1; | | |
| | | | (b) | the service of a summons on a witness, the payment of conduct money, fees, expenses or allowances to a witness and the service of a notice on a witness may be proved by an affidavit completed in accordance with Form 2; | | |
| | | | (c) | the provisions of the <i>Alberta Rules of Court</i> compelling the attendance of witnesses, including provisions relating to the payment of conduct money, fees, expenses or allowances. | | |
| Summons for an examination | 5 | | A summons for an examination under section 82 of the Act shall be completed in accordance with Form 3. | | | |
| | | | | PART 3 REGISTRATION | | |
| Compensation fund or contingency trust fund | 6 | (1) | The E | executive Director may | | |
| commigency additional | | | (a) | establish a compensation fund or contingency trust fund with a trust company, or | | |
| | | | (b) | approve a compensation fund or contingency trust fund established by | | |
| | | | | (i) a recognized self-regulatory organization, | | |
| | | | | (ii) a recognized exchange, or | | |
| | | | | (iii) a trust company. | | |
| | (3) | | Every investment dealer and mutual fund dealer must partic in and contribute to a fund established or approved under subsection (1). | | | |
| | | | The Executive Director may require any of the following persons or companies to participate in a fund established or approved under subsection (1): | | | |
| | | | (a) | a scholarship plan dealer; | | |
| | | | (b) | an exempt market dealer; | | |
| | | | (c) | a restricted dealer; | | |
| | | | (d) | a portfolio manager; | | |
| | | | (e) | a restricted portfolio manager. | | |
| | | (4) | (3) to | person or company required pursuant to subsection (2) or participate in a fund established or approved under ction (1) must contribute an amount of money to the fund as | | |

required by the recognized self-regulatory organization, by the recognized exchange, or, in the case of a fund established by a trust company or by the Executive Director, by the Executive Director.

(5) The Executive Director may exempt an investment dealer or mutual fund dealer from the requirements of subsection (2).

Registrant audit costs

If the Executive Director requests an auditor to conduct an audit of the financial affairs of a registrant in accordance with a direction given under Alberta securities laws, all costs relating to the audit shall be paid by the registrant.

PART 4 TRADING IN SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE CONTRACTS GENERALLY

Trading in securities

8 (1) In this section,

7

- (a) "agency" means a person or company that is
 - (i) recognized by the Commission for the purposes of this section, and
 - (ii) established for the purpose of receiving, assembling and publishing information collected from registrants concerning the details of trades in securities specified by the Commission and executed through negotiation or otherwise in the over-the-counter market;
- (b) "exercise price" means the price at which a purchaser of an option contract has the right to assume a purchase or sell position in a futures contract or an underlying asset that is the subject of the option contract;
- (c) "expiry date" means the date on which a futures contract or option contract expires;
- (d) "offsetting trade" means assuming an equal and opposite position in a futures contract or an option contract
 - (i) on the originating exchange, or
 - (ii) on a different exchange that employs the clearing facilities of the originating exchange;
- (e) "over-the-counter market" includes all trading in securities other than trades in securities that are listed and posted for trading on any exchange recognized by the Commission for the purposes of this section if the securities are traded pursuant to the by-laws, rules, or other regulatory instruments of that exchange;
- (f) "settlement price" means the price used by an exchange or its clearing agency to determine, on a daily basis, the net gain or loss in the value of a futures contract or an

option contract.

- (2) The Executive Director may require any class of registrants, as a condition of registration,
 - (a) to report all trades in the over-the-counter market to an agency in accordance with the requirements of the agency, and
 - (b) to pay to the agency the fees of the agency that are approved by the Commission.
- (3) The forms, fees and other requirements of an agency are subject to the approval of the Commission and the Commission shall publish those forms, fees and other requirements, and any amendment to any of them, in the month immediately following their approval.
- (4) The Executive Director may inspect all books, documents, correspondence and other records of any description maintained by an agency.
- (5) If the information received by an agency under this section is recorded by means of a mechanical, electronic or other device, the agency shall
 - (a) take adequate precautions that are appropriate to the means used to guard against the falsification of the information recorded, and
 - (b) provide means for making the information available to the Executive Director in an accurate and intelligible form within a reasonable time.

Confirmation under section 90(1) of the Act

- 9 (1) Where a trade is made in an exchange contract, the written confirmation required under section 90(1) of the Act shall set out the following:
 - (a) the exchange contract and quantity bought or sold;
 - (b) the delivery month and year;
 - (c) the expiry date of the exchange contract;
 - (d) the name of the exchange on which the trade took place;
 - (e) the date on which the trade took place;
 - (f) the price at which the exchange contract was traded;
 - (g) the commission and fees, if any, charged in respect of the trade;
 - (h) the names of the dealer and representative, if any, in the trade.
 - (2) For purposes of subsections (1)(d) and (h), a person, company or representative may be identified in a written confirmation by means of a code or symbol, if the written confirmation also contains a statement that the name of the person, company or

representative will be furnished to the customer on request.

- (3) If a dealer uses a code or symbol for identification in a confirmation under subsection (1)(d) or (h), the dealer shall
 - (a) promptly file with the Executive Director the code or symbol and its meaning, and
 - (b) notify the Executive Director within 5 days of any change in or addition to the code or symbol or its meaning.

Confirmation of a trade in an option contract

10

11

12

Where a dealer acts as an agent for a customer in connection with a trade in an option contract, in addition to meeting the requirements of section 9(1), the confirmation must set out

- (a) the premium,
- (b) the exercise price, and
- (c) the underlying asset or exchange contract that is the subject of the option contract.

Confirmation re offsetting trade

Where a dealer acts as an agent in connection with an offsetting trade in an exchange contract, in addition to providing the written confirmation and authorization that is required under section 90 of the Act, the dealer shall promptly send to the customer a written statement of purchase and sale setting out all of the following:

- (a) the exchange contract and quantity bought and sold;
- (b) the delivery month and year;
- (c) the expiry date of the exchange contract;
- (d) the name of the exchange on which the trade took place;
- (e) the dates of the initial and offsetting trades;
- (f) the prices on the initial trade and on the offsetting trades;
- (g) the gross profit or loss on the trade;
- (h) the commission and fees, if any, charged in respect of the trade;
- (i) the net profit or loss on the trade;
- (j) the names of the dealer and representative, if any, in the trade.

Outstanding exchange contract

Where a customer's account contains an outstanding exchange contract, the dealer shall promptly send to the customer a written statement setting out all of the following:

- (a) the opening cash balance in the customer's account;
- (b) all deposits, credits, withdrawals and debits to or from the customer's account;
- (c) the closing cash balance in the customer's account;

- (d) each open exchange contract;
- (e) the exercise price of each open option contract;
- (f) the settlement price of the underlying asset or exchange contract that is the subject of an open option contract;
- (g) the price at which each open exchange contract was traded.

Minimum margin required

13

Where a dealer acts as agent in connection with a trade in an exchange contract, the dealer shall require from a customer a margin of not less than the minimum required under the by-laws, rules or other regulatory instruments of the exchange on which the exchange contract is traded.

Omnibus accounts

14 (1)

- For the purposes of this section, "omnibus account" means an account for trading in exchange contracts carried by a dealer for another dealer in which the transactions of 2 or more persons or companies are combined and made in the name of the second dealer without disclosure of the identity of those persons or companies.
- (2) No dealer trading in exchange contracts shall make trades made on its own behalf or on behalf of any partner, officer, director or employee of the dealer or any associate of those persons through an omnibus account maintained by the dealer for trades in exchange contracts by customers.
- (3) No dealer shall make trades in exchange contracts made on behalf of its customers through an omnibus account maintained by the dealer for trades made on its own behalf.
- (4) Every dealer shall require from each of its customers for whom trades in exchange contracts are made through an omnibus account no less than that amount of margin that would be required of those customers if their trades were made through fully disclosed accounts.

Compliance with section 97(1)(c) of the Act

15 (1)

- A dealer that is a member of a self-regulatory organization may comply with section 97(1)(c) of the Act by complying with the requirements of the self-regulatory organization respecting the disclosure to clients of the dealer's financial condition.
- (2) A dealer that is not a member of a self-regulatory organization may comply with section 97(1)(c) of the Act by complying with the requirements as established by the Executive Director for the dealer respecting the disclosure to clients of the dealer's financial condition.

Risk disclosure statement under section 98 of the Act

16 (1)

- Every risk disclosure statement provided to a prospective customer by a registered dealer or adviser pursuant to section 98 of the Act must be in a format satisfactory to the Executive Director and must
- (a) explain the nature of and risk inherent in trading in exchange contracts and the obligations assumed by the

- customer on entering into an exchange contract,
- (b) advise the customer to request and study the terms and conditions of the contract, and
- (c) give details concerning commissions and other charges levied by the dealer or adviser.
- (2) Where a registered dealer or adviser provides to a prospective customer a statement under subsection (1), the registered dealer or adviser, as the case may be, must obtain from the customer an acknowledgement signed and dated by the customer stating that the customer has received and understood the statement.
- (3) On request, a dealer or adviser shall
 - (a) provide a customer with a summary of the terms and conditions of an exchange contract traded by the dealer or recommended by the adviser, and
 - (b) inform the customer where a copy of the terms and conditions of the exchange contract may be obtained and viewed.

PART 5 INSIDER TRADING AND SELF-DEALING

or both, and the applicable hourly rates;

costs paid or payable to a person or company, other than

Commission or the Executive Director for purposes of or related to the investigation or the hearing, or both;

Commission staff, appointed or engaged by the

| Report under section 183 of the Act | 17 | Every report required to be filed under section 183 of the Act shall be completed in accordance with Form 4. | | |
|--|----|---|--|--|
| Report under section 191 of the Act | 18 | Every report required to be filed under section 191 of the Act shall be completed in accordance with Form 5. | | |
| | | PART 6 ENFORCEMENT | | |
| Warrant | 19 | The endorsement of a warrant by a provincial judge or justice of the Court of Queen's Bench provided for by section 196 of the Act shall be completed in accordance with Form 6. | | |
| Costs re investigation and hearing | 20 | When the Commission or the Executive Director, as the case may be, makes an order under section 202(1) of the Act for the payment of costs of or related to the hearing or the investigation that led to the hearing, or both, the costs ordered may include one or more of the following, if the Commission or the Executive Director, as the case may be, is satisfied that such costs are reasonable in all the circumstances: | | |
| | | (a) costs of Commission staff involved in the investigation or the hearing, or both, based on the time expended for purposes of or related to the investigation or the hearing, | | |

(b)

- (c) costs paid or payable in respect of witnesses, other than costs referred to in clauses (a) and (b), for purposes of or related to the investigation or the hearing, or both; and
- (d) any other costs paid or payable for purposes of or related to the investigation or the hearing, or both.

Payment to Commission

21

Money paid by a person or company pursuant to an agreement with the Executive Director shall be paid to the Commission.

PART 7 CIVIL LIABILITY FOR SECONDARY MARKET DISCLOSURE

Meaning of equity security

22

In this Part, "equity security" means any security of an issuer that carries the residual right to participate in

- (a) the earnings of the issuer, and
- (b) the assets of the issuer on the liquidation or the windingup of the issuer.

Meaning of market capitalization

23

For the purposes of Part 17.01 of the Act, "market capitalization" means, in respect of an issuer, the amount determined as follows:

- (a) for each class of equity securities for which there is a published market, determine the sum of the number of outstanding securities of the class at the close of trading on each of the 10 trading days before the day on which the misrepresentation was made or the failure to make timely disclosure first occurred;
- (b) divide the sum determined under clause (a) by 10;
- (c) multiply the quotient determined under clause (b) for each class by the trading price of the securities of the class on the principal market for the securities for the 10 trading days before the day on which the misrepresentation was made or the failure to make timely disclosure first occurred:
- (d) add the amounts determined under clause (c) for each class of equity securities for which there is a published market:
- (e) for each class of equity securities not traded on a published market, determine the fair market value of the outstanding securities of that class as of the day on which the misrepresentation was made or the failure to make timely disclosure first occurred;
- (f) add the amounts determined under clause (e) for each class of equity securities not traded on a published market; and
- (g) add the amount determined under clause (d) to the amount determined under clause (f) to determine the market capitalization of the issuer.

Meaning of principal market

For the purposes of Part 17.01 of the Act, "principal market" means, in respect of a class of securities of a responsible issuer,

- (a) the published market in Canada on which the greatest volume of trading in securities of that class occurred during the 10 trading days before the day on which the misrepresentation was made or the failure to make timely disclosure first occurred, or
- (b) the published market on which the greatest volume of trading in securities of that class occurred during the 10 trading days before the day on which the misrepresentation was made or the failure to make timely disclosure first occurred, if securities of that class are not traded during those 10 trading days on a published market in Canada.

Meaning of trading price

25

For the purposes of Part 17.01 of the Act, "trading price" means, in respect of a security of a class of securities for which there is a published market, the amount determined under the following rules:

- (a) subject to clauses (b) and (c), the trading price of the security is the volume weighted average price of securities of that class on the published market during the period for which the trading price is to be determined;
- (b) subject to clause (c), if there was trading in the securities of that class in the published market on fewer than half of the trading days during the period for which the trading price of the securities is to be determined, the trading price of the security is determined as follows:
 - (i) calculate the sum of the average of the highest bid and lowest ask prices for each trading day in the period on which there were no trades in securities of that class in the published market,
 - (ii) divide the amount determined under subclause (i) by the number of trading days on which there were no trades in securities of that class in the published market,
 - (iii) add to the amount determined under subclause
 (ii) the volume weighted average price of securities of that class on the published market for those trading days on which securities of that class were traded,
 - (iv) divide by two the amount determined under subclause (iii):
- (c) if there were no trades of securities of that class in the published market during the period for which the trading price is to be determined, the trading price of the security is the fair market value of the security.

Application of Part 17.01 of the Act

- 26 (1) Part 17.01 of the Act applies to the acquisition of an issuer's security pursuant to an exemption from section 110 of the Act that is set out in section 2.8 of National Instrument 45-102 *Resale of Securities*, which exemption is prescribed for the purposes of section 211.02(b) of the Act.
 - (2) Part 17.01 of the Act applies to the acquisition or disposition of an issuer's security in connection with or pursuant to a take-over bid described in section 4.1, 4.4 or 4.5 of Multilateral Instrument 62-104 *Take-Over Bids and Issuer Bids* or an issuer bid described in section 4.8, 4.10 or 4.11 of Multilateral Instrument 62-104 *Take-Over Bids and Issuer Bids*, which bids are prescribed for the purposes of section 211.02(c) of the Act.

PART 8 GENERAL PROVISIONS

Filing of material filed in other jurisdictions – investment funds

27

An investment fund that is a reporting issuer shall file, concurrently with the Executive Director, all information not already filed with the Executive Director whether in the same or a different form, that it files with

- (a) a government of another jurisdiction,
- (b) an agency of a government of another jurisdiction, or
- (c) an exchange wherever situate,

under the securities or corporation law of that jurisdiction or under the by-laws, rules, or other regulatory instruments of the exchange, if it is material to purchasers of securities notwithstanding that the information is not specifically required to be filed by the terms of the applicable statute or regulation of that jurisdiction, or of the applicable by-laws, rules or other regulatory instruments of the exchange.

Filing of material generally

28 (1)

Except as otherwise provided under Alberta securities laws,

- (a) every document that is required or permitted to be filed with the Commission or the Executive Director by an individual and that is required to be signed or certified shall
 - (i) be manually signed, and
 - (ii) include, below the signature, the name of the individual in typewritten or printed form,
- (b) subject to clause (c), every document that is required or permitted to be filed with the Commission or the Executive Director by a company or person, other than an individual, and that is required to be signed or certified shall
 - (i) be manually signed by
 - (A) an officer or director of the person or company, or an individual acting in a

- capacity similar to that of an officer or director, or
- (B) subject to clause (d), the attorney or agent of the person or company, and
- (ii) include, below the signature, the name of the officer, director, attorney, agent or individual acting in a capacity similar to that of an officer or director in typewritten or printed form,
- (c) if a partner signs or certifies on behalf of a professional partnership, the partner is not required to sign his name, but, if an individual other than a partner signs or certifies,
 - (i) the individual shall manually sign his name, and
 - (ii) the name of the individual shall be included below his signature in typewritten or printed form.

and

- (d) if a document required or permitted to be filed with the Commission or the Executive Director by an individual, company or person has been executed by an attorney or agent, a completed power of attorney or document of authority authorizing the signing of the document shall be filed with the document unless the Commission or the Executive Director, as the case may be, otherwise permits.
- (2) Any document that is required or permitted to be filed with the Commission or the Executive Director and that is required to be signed or certified may be filed by electronic means if it is otherwise in accordance with the relevant requirements of this section.
- (3) Any document that is required or permitted to be filed with the Commission or the Executive Director and is not required to be signed or certified may be filed by electronic means.
- (4) Any document filed pursuant to subsections (2) or (3) is deemed to have been filed on the day upon which it was received by the Commission or the Executive Director, as the case may be.

Effective date and repeal

- **29** (1) These Rules come into force on July 31, 2010.
 - (2) The *Alberta Securities Commission Rules*, as amended, which came into force on June 1, 1995, are repealed.

SCHEDULE

FORM 1

Securities Act

SUMMONS TO A WITNESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 28, 29 OR 42 OF THE SECURITIES ACT

| RE: | |
|---|-------------------------------|
| TO: | |
| You are hereby summoned and required to attend before | |
| at an examination to be held at in the | of on |
| day the day of, 20 at the h | |
| noon (local time), and so from day to day until the exar connection with an investigation ordered by produce at such time and place | and to bring with you and |
| Dated this day of, 20 | |
| | ALBERTA SECURITIES COMMISSION |
| | (Signature) |

NOTE:

You are entitled to be paid the same personal allowances for your attendance at the examination as are paid for the attendance of a witness summoned to attend before the Court of Queen's Bench. You are entitled to be represented by counsel when you attend for your examination.

If you fail to attend and give evidence at the examination, or to produce the documents or things specified at the time and place specified, without lawful excuse, you are liable to punishment by the Court of Queen's Bench in the same manner as for contempt of that court for disobedience to a subpoena.

Securities Act

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE

| Province of Alberta |) THE MATTER | | |
|--|---|--------------------------------|--------------------|
| of |) SECURITIES A | кСТ | |
| 01 | _)) AND | | |
| | | ER OF | |
| |) | | |
| I,in the of | of the | of | |
| in the of | , make oat | h and say that: | |
| 1 I did on the day of at about o'clock with annexed hereto by delivering the sam | , 20 pe n a true copy of the ne to and leaving the sa | ersonally serve [specify "sumr | nons" or "notice"] |
| at the of in th | ne of | · | |
| 2 I did at the same time and pla Dollars, being the requisite at | | | |
| 3 To effect such service I neces | ssarily travelled | kilometres. | |
| SWORN before me at the of |)) | | |
| of of this day of, 20_ | | | |
| this day of, 20_ |) |) | |
| (A commissioner, etc.) | | | |

Securities Act

SUMMONS FOR EXAMINATION BEFORE A PERSON DESIGNATED UNDER SECTION 82 OF THE SECURITIES ACT

| RE: | | |
|--|----------------------------|----------------------|
| ТО: | | |
| You are hereby summoned and required by the Executive D | | |
| at an examination to be held at | in the | of |
| at an examination to be held at, 20 at | the hour of o'cl | lock in the |
| noon (local time), and so from day to day | y until the examination is | s concluded, to give |
| evidence on oath and to bring with you and produce at such | | |
| Dated this day of | ALBERTA SECURIT | IES COMMISSION |
| | | |
| | (Signature) | |
| | Name: | |
| | Title: | |

Securities Act

REPORT BY A REGISTERED OWNER OF SECURITIES BENEFICIALLY OWNED BY AN INSIDER UNDER SECTION 183 OF THE SECURITIES ACT

| NOTE: THIS REPORT IS ONLY REQUIRED WHERE |
|--|
|--|

- 1 VOTING SECURITIES ARE REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A PERSON OR COMPANY OTHER THAN THE BENEFICIAL OWNER;
- 2 THE PERSON OR COMPANY KNOWS THAT:
 - (a) THEY ARE BENEFICIALLY OWNED BY AN INSIDER, AND
 - (b) THE INSIDER HAS FAILED TO FILE A REPORT OF THE OWNERSHIP WITH THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AS REQUIRED BY PART 15 OF THE SECURITIES ACT; AND
- 3 THE TRANSFER TO THE PERSON OR COMPANY WAS NOT FOR THE PURPOSE OF GIVING COLLATERAL FOR A BONA FIDE DEBT.
- 1 State the relationship between the undersigned and the insider.
- 2 Certificate (Instruction 1):

The undersigned hereby certifies that:

- (a) attached as an exhibit is an unexecuted insider trading report in respect of voting securities that are registered in the name of the undersigned but beneficially owned by the insider named in the report, and
- (b) the report has, in respect of such voting securities, been completed to the best of my information and belief.

| Date of Report | Signature (Instruction 2) |
|----------------|---------------------------|

INSTRUCTIONS

- 1 Use as the exhibit the form of report the insider has failed to file as required by Part 15 of the Act. Complete the report only in respect of voting securities. If required information is not known by the person or company completing the attached report mark "Not known" or "Complete information not known".
- 2 Please print the name and office of the person or company executing this report or on whose behalf this report is executed.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT FOR A PERSON OR COMPANY TO MAKE A STATEMENT IN A DOCUMENT REQUIRED TO BE PROVIDED TO THE COMMISSION, THAT, IN A MATERIAL RESPECT AND AT THE TIME AND IN THE LIGHT OF THE CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH IT IS MADE, IS MISLEADING OR UNTRUE, OR DOES NOT STATE A FACT THAT IS REQUIRED TO BE STATED OR THAT IS NECESSARY TO MAKE THE STATEMENT NOT MISLEADING.

Securities Act

REPORT BY MANAGEMENT COMPANY UNDER SECTION 191 OF THE SECURITIES ACT

NAME OF THE MUTUAL FUND FOR WHICH THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY PROVIDES SERVICES AND ADVICE:

| SERV | ICES A | AND ADVICE: | | |
|---------|--|---|---|--|
| NAM | E OF T | THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY | ·: | |
| DATI | E OF TH | HE TRANSACTION: | | |
| CATI | EGORY | OF THE TRANSACTION (INST | RUCTION 1): | |
| PART | TIES TO | O THE TRANSACTION: | | |
| NATU | URE OF | F THE TRANSACTION (INSTRU | CTION 2): | |
| The u | _ | gned hereby certifies that the information | mation given in this report is true and complete in every | |
| Date of | of the R | Report | Name of Management Company | |
| | | | Ву | |
| | | | Signature | |
| | | | Official Capacity | |
| INSTI | RUCTIC | ONS: | | |
| 1 | Categ | gorize each transaction as being | | |
| | (a) | a transaction or purchase and person or company, | sale of securities between the mutual fund and a related | |
| | <i>(b)</i> | a transaction or purchase and s receiving a fee, | cale of securities resulting in a related person or company | |
| | (c) | a loan between the mutual fund | and a related person or company, or | |
| | (d) | a transaction to which the mut fund are joint participants. | ual fund and a related person or company of the mutual | |
| 2 | Where the transaction is categorized as a purchase or sale of securities between the mutual fun and a related person or company, state | | | |

the issuer of the securities purchased or sold,

(a)

- (b) the class or designation of the securities,
- (c) the amount or number of securities, and
- (d) the consideration.
- Where the transaction is categorized as a purchase or sale of securities resulting in a related person or company receiving a fee, state
 - (a) the issuer of the securities purchased or sold,
 - (b) the class or designation of the securities,
 - (c) the amount or number of the securities,
 - (d) the consideration,
 - (e) the name of the related person or company receiving a fee,
 - (f) the name of the person or company that paid the fee to the related person or company, and
 - (g) the amount of the fee received by the related person or company.
- Where the transaction is categorized as a loan between the mutual fund and a related person or company, state
 - (a) the name of the lender,
 - (b) the name of the borrower,
 - (c) the amount of money loaned,
 - (d) the terms of the loan, and
 - (e) the purpose of the loan.
- Where the transaction is categorized as one to which the mutual fund and 1 or more of its related persons or companies are joint participants, state terms of participation and the purpose of the transaction.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT FOR A PERSON OR COMPANY TO MAKE A STATEMENT IN A DOCUMENT REQUIRED TO BE PROVIDED TO THE COMMISSION, THAT, IN A MATERIAL RESPECT AND AT THE TIME AND IN THE LIGHT OF THE CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH IT IS MADE, IS MISLEADING OR UNTRUE, OR DOES NOT STATE A FACT THAT IS REQUIRED TO BE STATED OR THAT IS NECESSARY TO MAKE THE STATEMENT NOT MISLEADING.

Securities Act

ENDORSEMENT OF WARRANT UNDER SECTION 196(1) OF THE SECURITIES ACT

| Province of Alber | ta |) | | |
|-------------------|--------------|----|--|------------------------------|
| (territorial j | urisdiction) | | cial Judge or Justice in ce of Alberta) | and for |
| | | | ursuant to application territorial jurisdiction. | this day made to me, I hereb |
| Dated this d | av of | 20 | at | |